East Sussex
County Council

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE

DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change,
Councillor Nick Bennett

TUESDAY, 8 JULY 2025 AT 2.00 PM OR AT CONCLUSION OF FULL COUNCIL, WHICHEVER
IS THE LATER

REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS

AGENDA
1. Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 10 June 2025 (Pages 3 - 4)
2. Disclosure of Interests

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under
the terms of the Code of Conduct

3. Urgent items
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take
at the appropriate part of the agenda.

4. County Hall site options - Update on asset review (Pages 5 - 8)
Report by the Chief Operating Officer

5. Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3

PHILIP BAKER

Deputy Chief Executive

County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent

LEWES BN7 1UE 30 June 2025

Contact Sophie Webb, Governance and Democracy Manager,
01273 337495
Email: sophie.webb@eastsussex.gov.uk

NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at:
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/videos-of-council-meetings/webcasts

eastsussex.gov.uk


https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/videos-of-council-meetings/webcasts

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change, Councillor Nick
Bennett, on 10 June 2025 at Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams

Councillors Redstone and Swansborough spoke on item 4 (see minute 10)

6. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 3 JUNE 2025

6.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 3
June 2025.

7. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

7.1 There were none.

8. URGENT ITEMS

8.1 There were none.

9. REPORTS

9.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book.

Page 3



10. CIPEA: FINANCIAL ASSURANCE AND GOVERNANCE REVIEW

10.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Finance Officer.
DECISIONS

10.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to approve the commissioning of CIPFA to undertake a
Financial Assurance and Governance Review.

REASONS
10.3 If the Council is to explore Exceptional Financial Support with the Ministry of Housing,

Communities and Local Government, it will be required to undertake a CIPFA (Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) Financial Assurance and Governance Review.

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

Report to: Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change

Date of meeting: 8 July 2025

By: Chief Operating Officer

Title: County Hall site options — Update on asset review

Purpose: To provide an update on actions outlined in recommendations in the
Lead Member report on County Hall asset review - October 2024.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change is recommended to:

1) Note the contents of the report; and

2) Agree afurther report will be presented in summer 2026 to reassess the options

outlined in this report reflecting Local Government Reorganisation updates.

11

1.2

13

Background

On 15 October 2024, the Lead Member considered a report outlining the outcome of the County
Hall asset review. County Hall asset review - LMRCC open 15 October 2024 final.pdf. The Lead
Member agreed to a phased approach, including a number of immediate, short, medium and
long-term actions. The asset review did not identify any standout redevelopment option for the
County Hall site due to viability; hence, a phased approach of remaining at County Hall in the
short term and exploring a potential move to alternative premises on a parallel timetable to the
Council owned accommodation at Sackville House, Lewes, becoming available in 2030-32.

In December 2024 the Government published its English Devolution White Paper. In February
2025, following a combined submission from East Sussex County Council (the Council), West
Sussex County Council and Brighton and Hove City Council on 9 January 2025, the
Government announced that Sussex would be one of six areas included in the Devolution
Priority Programme (DPP), working towards establishing a Mayoral Combined County Authority
on an accelerated timescale ahead of a mayoral election in May 2026. Also in February 2025,
the Minister of State for Local Government invited all two-tier local authority areas to prepare
plans to establish a single tier of local government. The Council, working with its District and
Borough Council partners, submitted an interim proposal to Government in March 2025. The
Council is working towards a detailed proposal for a single unitary authority on the footprint of
the current County Council to be submitted in September 2025. This will be subject to Cabinet
and Full Council approval in September 2025.

This report provides an update on the immediate and short terms actions agreed in October
2024. However, it is anticipated that the proposals for Devolution and Local Government Re-
organisation in Sussex may impact the phased approach for the County Hall asset review
agreed in October 2024 and, in particular, the medium and long-term proposals.

Page 5


https://democracy.eastsussex.gov.uk/documents/s61837/County%20Hall%20asset%20review%20-%20LMRCC%20open%2015%20October%202024%20final.pdf

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Supporting Information

An update on the actions agreed in October 2024.

Rationalising space at County Hall

A space utilisation assessment was made for all teams occupying County Hall in autumn 2024.
The outcome of the space assessment was that all teams could co-locate in North, Centre and
West Blocks of County Hall, and this provided an opportunity to rationalise operational space. In
the first quarter of 2025, teams were re-located within County Hall and this allowed for East
Block and South Block to be freed up. The office moves were completed in March 2025. This
means the Council will be able to reduce its property operational costs at County Hall as it has
reduced its footprint of space occupied.

The vacant blocks are now being marketed via a property agent, which started in spring 2025.
There has been some interest from companies to occupy the office space, and these leads will
continue to be explored over the coming months. In addition, the Council has also engaged with
public sector partners to assess their accommodation needs to utilise County Hall space.

The Coroner Services, previously based at various locations around the county, has now
centralised its core service provision and has been operating from Westfield House, Lewes,
since Spring 2025, thereby reducing the need to lease or hire space around the county for this
service.

South Downs National Park Authority

The County Hall campus is located within the South Downs National Park Authority (SDNPA)
area. The SDNPA are currently undertaking a review of the South Downs Local Plan, (2014-
2033) and previously sought non-statutory consultation in autumn 2024. As part of the Local
Plan review, the SDNPA will be seeking identification of potential land so an assessment can be
made on the suitability and achievability of potential sites. The SDNPA undertook a formal
consultation (referred to as ‘Regulation 18 consultation’) in spring 2025; South Downs Local
Plan Review. The Draft Plan Review will allow residents and all stakeholders to come forward
with their views. The County Council, as freehold owners of the wider campus site submitted its
comments in March 2025 on proposed new allocations for the County Hall campus site in the
South Downs Local Plan Review (page 139) as part of the consultation process.

At present, the County Hall campus does not have a current whole site allocation in the existing
Local Plan as a development site for housing or other uses. However, parts of the County Hall
site (land fronting onto St Anne’s and the former St Anne’s School site) do have current site
allocations and are also listed within the Lewes Neighbourhood Development Plan. Therefore, a
Regulation 18 consultation allows the County Council to identify the whole site for development
as outlined in paragraph 2.4 above.

The SDNPA will consider all comments submitted as part of the Regulation 18 process, and the
timetable of next steps in late autumn 2025 to early 2027 is set out in The South Downs Local
Plan Review - South Downs National Park Authority

It is important to note that the Council has not made a decision but is exploring options about the
future use of the campus site. The Draft Local Plan will consider revised policies and plans as an
update to the current Local Plan (2014-2033).

The County Council and Lewes District Council continue to work in partnership seeking to ensure
they can work together for any future development plans in respect of the County Hall campus.

Sussex Devolution and Local Government Re-organisation

Page 6


https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning-policy/south-downs-local-plan/local-plan/
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2025/01/SD_LocalPlanRevCon_2024_09c-FINAL-correction.pdf
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2025/01/SD_LocalPlanRevCon_2024_09c-FINAL-correction.pdf
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2025/01/SD_LocalPlanRevCon_2024_09c-FINAL-correction.pdf
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning-policy/the-south-downs-local-plan-review/
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning-policy/the-south-downs-local-plan-review/

2.9 It is important the medium and long-term proposals for the County Hall site are fully aligned with
Local Government Reorganisation considerations. All six local authorities in East Sussex are
required to submit their final plan to Government in September 2025 and it is anticipated
Government will make a decision in spring 2026 on the proposed unitary organisation. This will
include the spatial geographical boundaries for a new unitary(s) and its roles and
responsibilities linked to the proposed Mayoral function across West Sussex, East Sussex and
Brighton & Hove.

2.10 A new unitary authority will also need to consider its wider asset strategy, service needs and
therefore future office and civic space which may impact on future options for County Hall
campus as well as other office hubs from all six authorities in East Sussex.

3 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations

3.1 Since October 2024, the immediate actions outlined in the Lead Member report have been
progressed, as detailed in this report.

3.2 Given the impact of Sussex Devolution and Local Government Reorganisation on the long-term
proposals for the County Hall site, it is proposed that a further report is presented to the Lead
Member in summer 2026 to set out recommended next steps.

3.3 The Lead Member is therefore recommended to:

¢ Note the contents of the report; and
e Agree a further report will be presented in summer 2026 to reassess the options outlined
in this report reflecting Local Government Reorganisation updates.

ROS PARKER

Chief Operating Officer

Contact Officer: Nigel Brown
Email: Nigel.Brown@eastsussex.gov.uk

Local Members:
Councillor Wendy Maples

Background Documents:
None

Page 7


mailto:Nigel.Brown@eastsussex.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 10 June 2025
	4 County Hall site options - Update on asset review

